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9. Completed Standard Forms

The Team has submitted the required forms listed below as 
part of our company’s proposal. They can be found on the 
following pages. 

	� Proposer’s Certification
	� Addendum Page
	� Drug Free Workplace
	� Public Entity Crimes Statement

Additional Forms
We have also submitted the forms below, which are not 
required or the proposal, but must be submitted prior to 
Comprehensive Development Agreement documents are 
signed.

	� Insurance Certificate
	� Bond Letter
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"The Best Waterfront City in Which to Live, Work and Play." 

 

 CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH  
ADDENDUM NO. 1  

TO: ALL PROPOSERS  

FROM: CITY OF RIVIERA BEACH PROCUREMENT DEPARMENT  

SUBJECT: 

 

 

DATE: 

 

CC:                 

ADDENDUM NO. ONE (1) TO RFQ 1039-21-3 DESIGN-BUILD-FINANCE OF 

UTILITY SPECIAL DISTRICT WATER TREATMENT FACILITIES 

 

JULY 9, 2021 

 

GENERAL PUBLIC 

___________________________________________________________________ 

 
 

A. NOTICE:   The purpose of this Addendum is to address Requests for Information 

(RFIs) and provide a written response.  All other terms and conditions of the 

solicitation remain unchanged. 

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS:  

1.   Requests that the respondent provide a sample risk assessment matrix for a project of 

similar size and scope.  In order to show the complete sample risk matrix, Respondent 

requests that this sample risk matrix be excluded from total page count. 

 

Answer:  The RFQ shall be amended as follows: 

TAB 6: PROJECT INNOVATION, DEVELOPMENT, AND MANAGEMENT 

PLAN (Limited to 20 pages) 

 

2.  Indicates respondent shall provide tabs separating each section of the submittal. Please 

confirm that tabs do not count towards total page count.   

 

Answer:  The tabs do not count toward the total page count. 

 

3.   Respondent requests that copies of all responses are made available for public inspection 

no earlier than thirty (30) days after the date of Award announcement 
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Answer:  The RFQ responses shall be made available as required by the Florida Sunshine 

Law statutes and the timeframes therein listed. 

 

4.  A Link or directions on how to attend the virtual pre-proposal conference 

 

Answer: The link was provided prior to the pre-proposal conference. 

 

 5.  A copy of the contract or contracts the city will be using for this project 

 

Answer:  The District will recommend that the Water Design Build Council Progressive 

Design-Build contract or the Design-Build Institute of America Contract 530 and 535 be 

used for this project.  These sample contracts can be found on the respective online sites 

for the organizations.  The District reserves the right to offer different sample contract 

forms if it is in the best interest of the District and acceptable to the successful proposer. 

 

6.  RFP Page 23 of 40 appears to have skipped Tab 7 and instead labels the Local Vendor 

Preference as Tab 8.  The Evaluation Criteria on page 26 of 40 labels Local Vendor 

Preference as Tab 7.  Please confirm that the Local Vendor Preference should be included 

in Tab 7 and that subsequently the SBE/M/WBE Forms (Schedules 1-4) should be included 

in Tab 8 and the Completed Standard Forms should be included in Tab 10 Confirm there 

are a total of 9 Tabs vs 10 as labeled.  

  

Answer:  Yes, this was a scrivener’s error and local preference may be included under Tab 

7, and SBE/M/WBE Forms under Tab 8 and completed Standard Forms under Tab 9 for a 

total of 9 Tabs.  

 

7.  Page 24 of 40 states that the Schedule 1-4 forms should be included in both the 

SBE/M/WBE Forms Tab as well as the Completed Standard Forms Tab.  Please advise in 

which Tab Schedules 1-4 should be inserted. 

 

Answer:  See response to question 6. 

 

8.  Please clarify item 14 on pages 17 and 18 of 40 which requires that Proposers and 

representatives must disclose their identity and provide a signed receipt for the proposal.  

Please provide a form for disclosure and receipt. 

 

Answer:  The Form attached under Page 33 is the signature form. 

9.  With respect to the Submission Instructions and Requirements on page 17 of 40, the RFP 

moves from paragraph 1 immediately to article 1.2 - please confirm that there is no article 

1.1 for this section.   

 

Answer:  There is no Article 1.1. 

 

10. Please clarify the preferred contractual mechanism for Phase 1, i.e. an Interim Agreement 

and provide a draft of such agreement.  Please confirm whether the District or the City 

would be the counterparty during Phase 1. 
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Answer:  If the District accepts the financing option provided by the successful proposer, 

the District will be party to the Phase I contract utilizing one of the sample contracts listed 

above.  The contract must be assignable to a financing organization if that option is 

selected by the City prior to Phase II of the project.   

11. Please clarify the preferred contractual mechanism for Phase 2, i.e. a Comprehensive 

Agreement and provide a draft of such agreement.  Please confirm if the District would be 

the counterparty during Phase 2. 

 

Answer:  As stated above, the District will propose utilizing one of the standard contracts 

listed in this addendum and if the financing option by the successful proposer is selected, 

the contract will be assignable to the financial partner if it is required for the financing 

package.  The District would then not be a party to the Phase II agreement although any 

Phase II agreement would require the District to approve all plans, specifications, permits, 

shop drawings, pay requests and any other portion of the project that will require approval 

for construction.  The Districts approval would occur prior to the approval by the financing 

partner under strict guidance in the contract. 

12. Please provide the District and City's anticipated dates for shortlisting, oral presentations, 

determination of final ranking(s) and execution of agreement for Phase 1 Services. 

Answer:  The Districts goal is to move the selection of the project partner to final approval 

as quick as possible.  As stated in the RFQ, it is the Districts desire to start preliminary 

construction on the site in November of 2021. 

13. Question 3 in Tab 5 states:  “Provide information on options within a lease-lease back 

agreement or a private capital agreement for a tiered payment system to allow gradual rate 

increases and leveraging current debt payments.”  To help us provide an appropriate 

response, please clarify the verbiage “leveraging current debt payments” - in other words, 

please clarify with which debt payments you are referring.    

Answer:  The District has two senior lien debts outstanding, the Water and Sewer Revenue 

Refunding Bond, Series 2014 (the "Series 2014 Bonds") and the Water and Sewer Revenue 

Bonds, Series 2016 (the "Series 2016 Bonds"). As of October 1, 2019, the Series 2014 

Bonds have $18,745,000 in principal outstanding and the Series 2016 have $30,445,000 

Outstanding.  Based on the existing debts, the annual debt service payment requirements 

for are approximately $4,450,000 annually through 2036.  Rate increases will be required 

to fund private debt either through a lease-lease back agreement or private equity capital 

agreement.  As stated in the RFQ, the District is seeking a financial option that allows 

these rate increases to be gradual over the lease or payment period and leverage available 

funds from the current debt payments when they mature. 

14. In the Introductory paragraph of “Tab 4: Development Team Experience” (pg. 20), the City 

requests “A minimum of four (4) but no more than ten (10) projects total, and no more than 

one project per page.”  Item 2 in Tab 4 , on that same page, requests “a list of design-build 

projects delivered for governmental clients…” This list needs to include information for 

sub-items “a” through “i”.  
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Is the design-build list requested in Item 2 related to the first requirement (“A minimum of 

four (4) but no more than ten (10) projects total, and no more than one project per page.”) 

or is this a separate list? If the Design-Build Project List is a separate list, what items does 

the City wish to see in the 1-page project descriptions? 

 

Answer:  The proposers should provide the District a complete list of related projects with 

a summary of the information requested in sub-items “a through i” in a table for the 

District to review relevant experience.  There is no limit on the projects provided in the 

list.  From this list, the proposers should select at least four but no more than ten projects 

to provide additional information concerning the selected projects expanding on the sub-

items “a through i” utilizing one page per project.   

  

15. On page 20, Tab 4: “Development Team Experience” Item 2h requests to “Provide a list 

with descriptions of pending projects and the projected completion dates.” This list is a 

sub-item of the Design-Build Project List; however, it appears that it could be meant to be 

a separate list. If so, should we include it below the Design-Build Project List? Also, what 

type of pending projects does the City wish to see here? 

Answer:  The RFQ shall be amended to remove the last sentence of Item 2h “Provide a list 

with descriptions of pending projects and the projected completion dates”.   This 

information is not required as part of this item.  Completion dates shall be provided as 

stated as part of item 2i. 

 

16. On page 26, the City has noted that the Local Vendor Preference is located on Tab 7. 

However in the previous section on page 23 there is no Tab 7. Please verify that the correct 

reference would be Tab 8. 

Answer:  See response in question number 6. 

 

 

17. On page 26, the City has noted that the local Vendor preference is as below, please verify 

that our interpretation listed below is correct: 

 

As provided in the RFQ 

Local Vendor Preference (Tab 7)  

Meet or Exceed 15%                 15 Points  

15% Participation                      10 Points  

> 15% Participation                         05 Points 

 

Suggested language 

Local Vendor Preference (Tab 8)  

> 15%                                       15 Points  

15% Participation                      10 Points  

< 15% Participation                          05 Points 

 

Answer:  The language stands for lines one and two as cited.  Line number 3 for less than 

15 percent participation is modified to read < 15% participation. 
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18. On page 23, the City has indicated in Tab 8, their preference for local business utilization. 

In the paragraph it refers to “bidder”. Please verify that a “bidder” may be a proposer for 

the RFQ OR may be a “bidder” of services or products to the proposer. Please verify that 

100% of the local “bidder” will count towards the stated % goal we state in our proposal. 

 

Answer:  The term bidder can mean both the proposer for the RFP or may be a bidder for 

to the proposers.   

 

19. On page 31, the City has indicated in the section titled “Local Vendor Preference” again 

references “bidder”. Please verify that a “bidder” may be a proposer for the RFQ OR may 

be a “bidder” of services or products to the proposer. Please verify that 100% of the local 

provider will count towards the stated % goal we state in our proposal. 

 

Answer:  See the response to question number 18. 

 

20. On page 31, the City has indicated in the section titled “Local Vendor Preference” that one 

of the partners in a joint venture/partnership must meet the criteria as set forth in this section 

for a local business. Our understanding is that partner must be a viable partner in the joint 

venture and would therefore be required to have a controlling interest to qualify. As an 

example, a partner in a two party joint venture could not have a 5% stake in the Joint 

Venture and the team would receive 100% Local Participation credit unless the partner had 

a minimum of 51% in the JV.  

 

Answer:  If the business is a joint venture/partnership, it is sufficient for qualification as a 

local business if at least one party of the joint venture/partnership meets the test set forth 

in this section. The bidder shall have the burden of demonstrating that it meets this 

definition. Permanent physical location must be established for a minimum of twelve (12) 

months prior to the published date of this solicitation. 

 

21. On page 17, Item 14 indicates that all copies of the Proposer’s submittal shall be on single-

sided 8½ x 11 plain white paper. Would it be acceptable to use an 11 x 17-size sheet for 

the org chart(s) and one for the schedule? If so, would it count as 1 or 2 pages? 

 

Answer:  The District prefers all submittal information use 8.5x11 paper because it allow 

the .pdf file to be easily reviewed digitally.  The District has considered the size of potential 

schedules and organization charts and Item 14 of the RFQ will be amended as follows: 

“The requested draft project schedule and requested organization charts shall be provided 

on 8.5x11 sheets but the continuation of a schedule or organizational chart on additional 

pages will not count toward the required page totals”.  

 

22. On page 20, “Tab 4: Development Team Experience”, Item 2.f is missing from the list. Is 

this item actually missing or was just the number skipped?  

 

Answer:  The number was skipped. 



mailto:purchasing@rivierabeach.org



















